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introduced pursuant to the Federal
Rules of Evidence or Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure.

§111.22 Ex parte communications.

(a) In order to avoid the possibility of
prejudice, real or apparent, to the pub-
lic interest in enforcement actions
pending before the Commission pursu-
ant to 11 CFR part 111, except to the
extent required for the disposition of
ex parte matters as required by law
(for example, during the normal course
of an investigation or a conciliation ef-
fort), no interested person outside the
agency shall make or cause to be made
to any Commissioner or any member of
any Commissioner’s staff any ex parte
communication relative to the factual
or legal merits of any enforcement ac-
tion, nor shall any Commissioner or
member of any Commissioner’s staff
make or entertain any such ex parte
communications.

(b) The prohibition of this regulation
shall apply from the time a complaint
is filed with the Commission pursuant
to 11 CFR part 111 or from the time
that the Commission determines on the
basis of information ascertained in the
normal course of its supervisory re-
sponsibilities that it has reason to be-
lieve that a violation has occurred or
may occur pursuant to 11 CFR part 111,
and remains in force until the Commis-
sion has finally concluded all action
with respect to the enforcement matter
in question.

(c) Nothing in this section shall be
construed to prohibit contact between
a respondent or respondent’s attorney
and any attorney or staff member of
the Office of General Counsel in the
course of representing the Commission
or the respondent with respect to an
enforcement proceeding or civil action.
No statement made by such a Commis-
sion attorney or staff member during
any such communication shall bind or
estop the Commission in any way.

§111.23 Representation by counsel; no-
tification.

(a) If a respondent wishes to be rep-
resented by counsel with regard to any
matter pending before the Commission,
respondent shall so advise the Commis-
sion by sending a letter of representa-
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tion signed by the respondent, which
letter shall state the following:

(1) The name, address, and telephone
number of the counsel;

(2) A statement authorizing such
counsel to receive any and all notifica-
tions and other communications from
the Commission on behalf of respond-
ent.

(b) Upon receipt of a letter of rep-
resentation, the Commission shall have
no contact with respondent except
through the designated counsel unless
authorized in writing by respondent.

§111.24 Civil Penalties (2 U.S.C.
437g(a) (5), (6), (12), 28 U.S.C. 2461
nt.).

(a) Except as provided in paragraph
(b) of this section, a civil penalty nego-
tiated by the Commission or imposed
by a court for a violation of the Act or
chapter 95 or 96 of title 26 shall not ex-
ceed the greater of $5,500 or an amount
equal to any contribution or expendi-
ture involved in the violation. In the
case of a knowing and willful violation,
the civil penalty shall not exceed the
greater of $11,000 or an amount equal to
200% of any contribution or expendi-
ture involved in the violation.

(b) Any Commission member or em-
ployee, or any other person, who in vio-
lation of 2 U.S.C. 437g(a)(12)(A) makes
public any notification or investiga-
tion under 2 U.S.C. 437g without receiv-
ing the written consent of the person
receiving such notification, or the per-
son with respect to whom such inves-
tigation is made, shall be fined not
more than $2,200. Any such member
employee, or other person who know-
ingly and willfully violates this provi-
sion shall be fined not more than $5,500.

[62 FR 11317, Mar. 12, 1997; 62 FR 18167, Apr.
14, 1997]

PART 112—ADVISORY OPINIONS (2
U.S.C. 437f)

Sec.

112.1 Requests for advisory opinions (2
U.S.C. 437f(a)(1)).

112.2 Public availability of requests (2
U.S.C. 437f(d)).

112.3 Written comments on requests (2
U.S.C. 437f(d)).

112.4 Issuance of advisory opinions (2 U.S.C.
437f (a) and (b)).
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112.5 Reliance on
U.S.C. 437f(c)).
112.6 Reconsideration of advisory opinions.

AUTHORITY: 2 U.S.C. 437f, 438(a)(8).

SOURCE: 45 FR 15123, Mar. 7, 1980, unless
otherwise noted.

advisory opinions (2

§112.1 Requests for advisory opinions
(2 U.S.C. 437f(a)(1)).

(a) Any person may request in writ-
ing an advisory opinion concerning the
application of the Act, chapters 95 or 96
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, or
any regulation prescribed by the Com-
mission. An authorized agent of the re-
questing person may submit the advi-
sory opinion request, but the agent
shall disclose the identity of his or her
principal.

(b) The written advisory opinion re-
quest shall set forth a specific trans-
action or activity that the requesting
person plans to undertake or is pres-
ently undertaking and intends to un-
dertake in the future. Requests pre-
senting a general question of interpre-
tation, or posing a hypothetical situa-
tion, or regarding the activities of
third parties, do not qualify as advi-
sory opinion requests.

(c) Advisory opinion requests shall
include a complete description of all
facts relevant to the specific trans-
action or activity with respect to
which the request is made.

(d) The Office of General Counsel
shall review all requests for advisory
opinions submitted under 11 CFR 112.1.
If the Office of General Counsel deter-
mines that a request for an advisory
opinion is incomplete or otherwise not
qualified under 11 CFR 112.1, it shall,
within 10 calendar days of receipt of
such request, notify the requesting per-
son and specify the deficiencies in the
request.

(e) Advisory opinion requests should
be sent to the Federal Election Com-
mission, Office of General Counsel, 999
E Street, NW., Washington, DC 20463.

(f) Upon receipt by the Commission,
each request which qualifies as an advi-
sory opinion request (AOR) under 11
CFR 112.1 shall be assigned an AOR
number for reference purposes.

[45 FR 15123, Mar. 7, 1980, as amended at 50
FR 50778, Dec. 12, 1985]

§112.4

§112.2 Public availability of requests
(2 U.S.C. 437f(d)).

(a) Advisory opinion requests which
qualify under 11 CFR 112.1 shall be
made public at the Commission
promptly upon their receipt.

(b) A copy of the original request and
any supplements thereto, shall be
available for public inspection and pur-
chase at the Public Disclosure Division
of the Commission.

§112.3 Written comments on requests
(2 U.S.C. 437f(d)).

(a) Any interested person may sub-
mit written comments concerning ad-
visory opinion requests made public at
the Commission.

(b) The written comments shall be
submitted within 10 calendar days fol-
lowing the date the request is made
public at the Commission. However, if
the 10th calendar day falls on a Satur-
day, Sunday, or Federal holiday, the 10
day period ends at the close of the busi-
ness day next following the weekend or
holiday. Additional time for submis-
sion of written comments may be
granted upon written request for an ex-
tension by the person who wishes to
submit comments or may be granted
by the Commission without an exten-
sion request.

(c) Comments on advisory opinion re-
quests should refer to the AOR number
of the request, and statutory references
should be to the United States Code ci-
tations, rather than to Public Law ci-
tations.

(d) Written comments and requests
for additional time to comment shall
be sent to the Federal Election Com-
mission, Office of General Counsel, 999
E Street, NW., Washington, DC 20463.

(e) Before it issues an advisory opin-
ion the Commission shall accept and
consider all written comments submit-
ted within the 10 day comment period
or any extension thereof.

[45 FR 15123, Mar. 7, 1980, as amended at 50
FR 50778, Dec. 12, 1985]

§112.4 Issuance of advisory opinions
(2 U.S.C. 437f (a) and (b)).

(a) Within 60 calendar days after re-
ceiving an advisory opinion request
that qualifies under 11 CFR 112.1, the
Commission shall issue to the request-
ing person a written advisory opinion
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or shall issue a written response stat-
ing that the Commission was unable to
approve an advisory opinion by the re-
quired affirmative vote of 4 members.

(b) The 60 calendar day period of 11
CFR 112.4(a) is reduced to 20 calendar
days for an advisory opinion request
qualified under 11 CFR 112.1 provided
the request:

(1) Is submitted by any candidate, in-
cluding any authorized committee of
the candidate (or agent of either),
within the 60 calendar days preceding
the date of any election for Federal of-
fice in which the candidate is seeking
nomination or election; and

(2) Presents a specific transaction or
activity related to the election that
may invoke the 20 day period if the
connection is explained in the request.

(c) The 60 day and 20 day periods re-
ferred to in 11 CFR 112.4 (a) and (b)
only apply when the Commission has
received a qualified and complete advi-
sory opinion request under 11 CFR
112.1, and when the 60th or 20th day oc-
curs on a Saturday, Sunday or Federal
holiday, the respective period ends at
the close of the business day next fol-
lowing the weekend or holiday.

(d) The Commission may issue advi-
sory opinions pertaining only to the
Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971,
as amended, chapters 95 or 96 of the In-
ternal Revenue Code of 1954, or rules or
regulations duly prescribed under those
statutes.

(e) Any rule of law which is not stat-
ed in the Act or in chapters 95 or 96 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, or in
a regulation duly prescribed by the
Commission, may be initially proposed
only as a rule or regulation pursuant
to procedures established in 2 USC
438(d) or 26 USC 9009(c) and 9039(c) as
applicable.

(f) No opinion of an advisory nature
may be issued by the Commission or
any of its employees except in accord-
ance with 11 CFR part 112; however,
this limitation does not preclude dis-
tribution by the Commission of infor-
mation consistent with the Act and
chapters 95 or 96 of the Internal Reve-
nue Code of 1954.

(9) When issued by the Commission,
each advisory opinion or other re-
sponse under 11 CFR 112.4(a) shall be
made public and sent by mail, or per-
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sonally delivered to the person who re-
quested the opinion.

§112.5 Reliance on advisory opinions
(2 U.S.C. 437f(c)).

(a) An advisory opinion rendered by
the Commission under 11 CFR part 112
may be relied upon by:

(1) Any person involved in the spe-
cific transaction or activity with re-
spect to which such advisory opinion is
rendered, and

(2) Any person involved in any spe-
cific transaction or activity which is
indistinguishable in all its material as-
pects from the transaction or activity
with respect to which such advisory
opinion is rendered.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provi-
sion of law, any person who relies upon
an advisory opinion in accordance with
11 CFR 112.5(a) and who acts in good
faith in accordance with that advisory
opinion shall not, as a result of any
such act, be subject to any sanction
provided by the Federal Election Cam-
paign Act of 1971, as amended, or by
chapters 95 or 96 of the Internal Reve-
nue Code of 1954.

§112.6 Reconsideration of
opinions.

(@) The Commission may reconsider
an advisory opinion previously issued if
the person to whom the opinion was
issued submits a written request for re-
consideration within 30 calendar days
of receipt of the opinion and if, upon
the motion of a Commissioner who
voted with the majority that originally
approved the opinion, the Commission
adopts the motion to reconsider by the
affirmative vote of 4 members.

(b) The Commission may reconsider
an advisory opinion previously issued
if, upon the motion of a Commissioner
who voted with the majority that
originally approved the opinion and
within 30 calendar days after the date
the Commission approved the opinion,
the Commission adopts the motion to
reconsider by the affirmative vote of 4
members.

(c) In the event an advisory opinion
is reconsidered pursuant to 11 CFR
112.6(b), the action taken in good faith
reliance on that advisory opinion by
the person to whom the opinion was
issued shall not result in any sanction

advisory
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provided by the Act or chapters 95 or 96
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954. 11
CFR 112.6(c) shall not be effective after
the date when the person to whom the
advisory opinion was issued has re-
ceived actual notice of the Commis-
sion’s decision to reconsider that advi-
sory opinion.

(d) Adoption of a motion to recon-
sider vacates the advisory opinion to
which it relates.

PART 113—EXCESS CAMPAIGN
FUNDS AND FUNDS DONATED TO
SUPPORT FEDERAL OFFICE-
HOLDER ACTIVITIES (2 U.S.C.
439a)

Sec.
113.1 Definitions (2 U.S.C. 439a).
113.2 Use of funds (2 U.S.C. 439a).

113.3 Deposits of funds donated to a Federal
or State officeholder (2 U.S.C. 432(h)).
113.4 Contribution and expenditure limita-

tions (2 U.S.C. 441a).
AUTHORITY: 2 U.S.C. 432(h), 438(a)(8), 439a,
441a.

SOURCE: 45 FR 15124, Mar. 7, 1980, unless
otherwise noted.

§113.1 Definitions (2 U.S.C. 439a).

When used in this part—

(@) Funds donated. Funds donated
means all funds, including, but not lim-
ited to, gifts, loans, advances, credits
or deposits of money which are donated
for the purpose of supporting the ac-
tivities of a Federal or State office-
holder; but does not mean funds appro-
priated by Congress, a State legisla-
ture, or another similar public appro-
priating body, or personal funds of the
officeholder donated to an account con-
taining only those personal funds.

(b) Office account. Office account
means an account established for the
purposes of supporting the activities of
a Federal or State officeholder which
contains excess campaign funds and
funds donated, but does not include an
account used exclusively for funds ap-
propriated by Congress, a State legisla-
ture, or another similar public appro-
priating body, or an account of the of-
ficeholder which contains only the per-
sonal funds of the officeholder, or an
account containing only appropriated
funds and only personal funds of the of-
ficeholder.

§113.1

(c) Federal officeholder. Federal office-
holder means an individual elected to
or serving in the office of President or
Vice President of the United States; or
a Senator or a Representative in, or
Delegate or Resident Commissioner to,
the Congress of the United States.

(d) State officeholder. State officeholder
means an individual elected to or serv-
ing in any elected public office within
a State of the United States, the Dis-
trict of Columbia, the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico or any subdivision
thereof.

(e) Excess campaign funds. Excess cam-
paign funds means amounts received by
a candidate as contributions which he
or she determines are in excess of any
amount necessary to defray his or her
campaign expenditures.

(f) Qualified Member. Qualified Member
means an individual who was serving
as a Senator or Representative in, or
Delegate or Resident Commissioner to,
Congress, on January 8, 1980.

(g) Personal use. Personal use means
any use of funds in a campaign account
of a present or former candidate to ful-
fill a commitment, obligation or ex-
pense of any person that would exist ir-
respective of the candidate’s campaign
or duties as a Federal officeholder.

(1)(i) Personal use includes but is not
limited to the use of funds in a cam-
paign account for:

(A) Household food items or supplies;

(B) Funeral, cremation or burial ex-
penses;

(C) Clothing, other than items of de
minimis value that are used in the cam-
paign, such as campaign ““T-shirts’ or
caps with campaign slogans;

(D) Tuition payments, other than
those associated with training cam-
paign staff;

(E) Mortgage,
ments—

(1) For any part of any personal resi-
dence of the candidate or a member of
the candidate’s family; or

(2) For real or personal property that
is owned by the candidate or a member
of the candidate’s family and used for
campaign purposes, to the extent the
payments exceed the fair market value
of the property usage;

rent or utility pay-
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